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Fastor L'aul ILucas - A Man Tried by Fire

s

Fastor Faul Tuecas is not a mén of renown. /s a pastor of
the Wisconsin Synod he's done little to cause ripples in the
world of theology. Me had a relatively short career =g =a pastor,
A mere 16 years of service in the ministry. However, we members
of the Wisconsin Synod have reason to reioice and praise God for
those 16 years of faithful service. FYastor Lucas was a man who
came. through difficult times and came through them sas a shining
example of a faithful Christian prastor governed by the Word of
God,

th

Paptized Johann Friedrich Yaul Lukas, he was born in +

! V (,Gl‘k.\rq' n‘zf}l Vs Po_sm)
town of lewitz in the province of Posenw Kingdom of frussis on

)

SApril 7, 1842, Posen is modern Yoznafi, s very laree citv in
L 9 b ./ s

western Poland, FPaul Lucas' father was +he pastor of Lewits;
his mother died when he wos still a child.

During his years at the Gymnasium =t Z011lichan the first
major event leading to Faul Lucas' theological training ocourrad,

ps)

Peul Tucas did not consider himself a Christian during his envly

years, whelbher it was due to a fasulty understandine of it or

whetber he truly wae an unbeliever is not clear., whilo at bhope

during a school vacation, Ysul luca= contrrcted o

that the discese wos one of the normsl b5 1d-

digsease. It

A

hood diseases (probably ved measleg) most childrven until recent

yerrs suffered throusrh, Unfortunastely he wee sent ba

hefore the illnese hed completely passed, Ag o result Faul loone
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went through a terrifying ordeal, He completely lost his sight.

He was sent home immediately and all efforts to reverse the blind-
ness at home were fruitless. Unwilling to give up, FPaul wos taken
bv his father to Berlin where he was trested by several eye
specialists. Apparehtly the treatment was a lengthy process butl
it proved successful; his eyesight returned to a great extent.
While in Berlin and undergoing treatment Paul lucas re-
ceived another kind of cure, a cure for his lack of faith or
doubt of its existence. Two pious Christian families in Berlin
showed him a concern and love which opened his heart to them.
The one family was .that of a Dr. Kranichfeld and the other a
Pastor Knaak, pastor of a Bohemian lLutheran congregation in
RBerlin. The continuous Christian love and application of the
Gospel gave the Holy Spirit the opportunity to work on Faul
Tucas, Paul, however, attributed a great portion of his»assur—
ance to a sermon of Fastor ®naak's based on John %:16.
Shortly afterwards Psul returned home and had a very emo-

tional reunion with his father. After all he had recently be-

gun to see again and had for the first time taken the objective
message of Christ crucified personally. This joyvous ocrasion

was compounded by Faul's decisirn to study for the ministry.

; Fastor Knaak, Paul's father and Faul Jointly settled on the

; Barmen Missionhaus and missionary service as the best choice
for Faul and in 1861 Paul enrolled. Upon crmpletion of his
training and passing his doctrinal examination, Yaul was assign-
ed to the wWisconsin Synod and left for America in 1865

It is significatn to note in what yesr Paul Lucas came to

the Wisconsin Svnod. LIt was a period of trensition for the
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Synod and one of dismaj for the Prussian Church which had fdr a
decade and a bhalf supplied both pastors and funds for the strug-
rgling church of Wisconsin., The Wigconsin Synod was growing to-
ward confessional Tutheranism, The Prussian Church remained
strongly unionistic, The Frussian Church Council was infuriated
Wisconsin Svnod's new practice of re-examining men sent
over to fill its pulpits and refusing to accept men rot confes-
sionally Tutheran.

This practice could very well have mesnt that there would
be no Festor rFaul Tucas of the Wisconsin Synod. Greatly to the
credit of the Foly Spirit's guidance, however, Faul Lucas came
to a very important conclusion while still undergoing his eve
treatments in Berlin. Although he highly reépected Fastor bfnaak
and even considered him his spiritual father, Paul Lucas came
to the Conclusidﬁ’that unionism was wrong and could not stand
the unionistic éféctices prevalent in Pastor Knask's Berlin
church. 7

Upon arrival in Wisconsin in mid-1865 Paul Lucas was sub-
Jjected to doctfinal re—examination by members of the Synod. And
contrary to J; Pa Koehler's aécount,anul Lucag was not imwedi-
ately installed and ordajned.‘Finfofmation seems Lto indicate
that he was Ffound to bé shaky on the Iutheran doctrines concern-

o
c

ing Beptism and the Lord's Supper.” He was willinc and eaper to
learn confessional Lutheranism fro@a comprehensive study of berip-
ture. Paul Tucas studied with a lissouril ®ynod pastor (Amtsnach-
bar). 1t isn't clear where or when this took place, however.

1t would seem from some sources that this was in Vrinceton at

7z

. . . . - 7
his first pastorate during the remainder of 18&5;- however, the
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church records of St. John's,

until the *rd Sunday in Advent

Paul Lucas

A

as installed.

Princeton

1866 aft

, indicate that it wasn't

er a year's vacancy that

According to the records of St. John's Yastor Lucas was

put in a tough position. The congregation was torn by strife

and Pastor

Lucas' evangelical approach was met with good old

Germsn pig-headedness, Within

another call,

the year Fostor lucas accepted

Convention reports and his obituary in the

Gemeinde-BElatt place him at Reedsburg for a short period of time

in 1868,

I was unable to obtain any infor

service in *t

eedsburg only a ma

S'f’ P@Z’”@FS a m&mber og

mation about Pastor Lucas'

tter of months. The congregotion Pasfor Loca

in Keedsburg is Hedth Reran
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Although nothing could be gethered from the congregation

the synodical

the Wisconsin

union,

tions for several vears

consin ®ynod to refrain from

in Reedsburg, 1868 was an important year for Fastor Lucas on
level, At the previous Pynod Convention in 1867

Synod made a foymal declaration against church

The German societies had felt the chilling of rela-

of 1868 the Germans finally cu

the Synod,

Tt wa

9

t off all

already but hoped to convince the Wis-

further confessionalism. In April

funds and manpower to

also in 1867 that the General Council was formed,

Towa and Ohio raised questions on four

clarification hefore they woul

brought up at the Synod Convention of T

fellowship,

secret societies,

a jein.

authority

issues which needed
These four issues were
&y altar and pulpit

of the General Council
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5t. Paul's in whot is now the city of Iranklin on Milwaukee o

N

far south side. At that time &

L

t. Paul's was a young and grow-
ing Congregétion orsanized only three years earlier, 186%.,
mlike the Princeton congregation, the Franklin congregstion
was well-organized and dedicated to unified effort. Since ot.
Faul's had been served bv Pastor Brenner of nearby Kilbourﬁe

Road Lutheran Yhurch (St. John's, Oakwood Rd.) the members

)

began immediate construction of a parsonage and later a barn.

Fastor Lucas also assumed teaching duties at 5St. Faul's school.

(&P

At present more detailed records are not available from Shv
Paul's,

In 1874 asccording to the records of ©t. Paul's and 1872
according to the records of First Lutheran, Beaver Dam, Fastor
Lucas accepted a call to PFirst Lufheran, Beaver Dam., The church

' and served by Pastors
had been founded in 1860 by Fastor Puborg,  Bebner, leim and

Sprengling. The records of the local newspsper indicaté that .

the church did not become a Synod consregation until 1872.?2fwv
At a congregational meeting in Nov. of 187% Pastor LuéésV'

wag Taced with a real problem. The vote was 44-29 ngainst con-

tinued membershirn in the syn~d. <Yhe reason behind the whole

qrestion of synodical membership was secret Societies,(ﬁhe lodg§

and close communion. As already menticned,  the Wiséonﬁin Syvnod
had resclved in the previous decade that memherashin in » lodge
and altar fellows™ip could not be tolersted among members of the
Bynod .,

Fastor Iaucas. came through; he and 25‘famjli@s left Fivet

[ !
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Tutheran 2nd estahlished St. btephen =, Bt. Stephen & ftook
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over against the member synods and the millenium, Secret so-
cieties and the millenium had already been dealt with by the
synod, but altar and pulpit fellowship were in the spotlight.

It was immediately remarked by one of the pastors at the con-
vention that altar and pulpit fellowship with Reformed and Union
chuv<hés wags incongruous with the stand taken the previous year
against church union. Another pastor remarked that it might be
good if Wisconsin Synod pastors preached sand celebrated the
sacrament in Keformed and Union churches if asked to, but would
not allow Reformed and Union pastors to do the same in our
churches,

Pastors Vorberg and Kittel and frofeséor Martin took turns
at supporting church union and altar =nd pulpit fellowship. The
main arcuments were that the Wisconsin Synod had deviated from
its original confessional stand and that the Wisconsin Synod was
bepun 9s a mission endeavor of the German =ocieties and had no
business breaking off on its own.

A vote was called; the three men menticned and Pastor
Lucas voted for continued alt=r and pulpit fellowship. The
three who spoke out broke witr the synod. Fastor Lucas, however,

did not. The convention minutes simply evplain that Yastor Lucas'

wes cast with doubt as to w%wch was the correct stand.

A parently some of those at the convention spoke with him between
sessions and convinced him of the scripturalness of the stond
against altar and pulpit fellowship, He wes convinced in any
event, and changed his vote,

In September of 1865 Pastor Lucas received a call from



active interest in the Yisconsin Svnod, the “eminary and North-
western GCollege. The experience did take a toll on Pagtor Lucag'
health., According to T. Pieper, Pastor lLucas became quite a
nervous man and his health began failing. Moeper suppests that
this was the main feésou for Fagtor Tucas' occeplbance of a call
to Two Rivers in 1878,

According to the records of 5t. John's, Two Kivers, nothing

' term of service there,

significant happened during Pastor Lucas
Fastor Lucas' health continued to fail and his eyvesight again.also.
In 1881 *Yastor Lucas and his congregation decided he should make
a trip to Milwuakee to visit a hospital for treatment. Hovever,
while in Milwaukee at the end of July he became seriocusly ill
and asked that some of his synodical brethren vieit him. The
above-mentioned Pastor K, Pieper was telegraphed and afrived
July 24. Pastor Lucas lingered on for four more davs and after
receiving absloution and privste communion died July 28.

Yagtor Twcas lived only 39 vears and spent 16 of those
years as a pastor in the Wisconsin oynod. Sometime probably
shortly after srriving in Wisconsin he married and was blessed
with a son and a daughter. Irom the available records all that
is known about the family 1s that the son was attending North-
western Goilege at the time of his father's death,

tastor Lucas seems to have been a aquiet man at heart, not
outstanding, but zealous for the Lord., &is life was marked by
sericus trials of faith, but in e ch case “astor Lucss lookad
for guidance from God;s dord and came oult a confessionally luth~
eran pastor. Recsuse%his backeround and training in 2 union-

minded Frussia one can onlyv marvel that he not only hecane 2



Wisconsin Synod pastor but also remained a Wisconsin Svnod

pastor as the Synod itsell grew in a firm stand based on Scrip-

ture and the Lutheran Confessions,

Footnotes

a

Mn,: Sentinel Publishing VYo.,1970) p. 111.

o] L .
“R. Pieper, Yemeinde-Blatt, 1881, p. 188,

7 Kochlery op ity Piper op. cif.
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Pastor Glenn Moldenhauer
Box 27
Hillpoint, WI. 53937

Duane Vanselow w
6010 N. 35th Ste #308
Milwaukee, WI. 53209

Dear Duane,

T apologize for this late reply to your request of Feb. 22,
The information you asked for was not easy to find and not much
more than the fact that Pastor Lukas did serve the congrgation in
Reedsburg for less than a year, the year being 1868 or possibly

1867,

This congregation is St. Peter's of Reedsburg (LCMS). I serve
Faith Ev. Lutheran Church of Reedsburg founded in 1965 by a group that
left St. Peter's for confessional and somewhat less than confession
reasons, One of the pastor's of 3t. Peter's did his best to check
through old records of meetings but could find no mention of why
Pastor Lukas stayed so short a time or anything pertaining to his
confessionalism,

The first Lutheran congrgation in this area was St. John's of
Loganville. Under a Pastor Rohitlack who went to Milwaukee to meet
with Dr. CFW§ Walther this congregation joined the LCMS. When he _
left to accept a cdll elswhere this congrgation was trying to decide
where to build a new church building. The majority wanted it built
on the hill in Loganville where it still stands. The minority from
Reedsburg wanted it built on the plain closer to Reedsburg. They
decided to leave St. John's of Loganville and call a pastor from the
Wisconsin Synod, That was your Pastor Lukas who stayed with the
congregation less than a year. After he left this group called Pastor
Rohrlack again and he became the foundiéng pastor of St. Peter's of
Reedsburg.

IT'm faily certain that this is all the information that can
be gathered concerning this Pastor Lukas from this source.

Sincerely,



St. John’s Lutheran Church and School

Harvard & Clinton Princeton, Wisconsin 54968
ROBERT P. PLESS, PASTOR WALTER L. STROHSCHEIN, PASTOR STEVEN H. ENTER, PRINCIPAL
224 Harvard Rt. 1, Box 2858 328 S. Clinton
295-6920 295-3193 295-3991

these

Lhe

shubho
To

neerely,

Member of Wisconsin Synodw ?(/

Kl




Sf. Siep;wn; .Cenfennia/\/#idfor% 1875 - 1975

St. Stephen’s was not the first Lutheran congregation organized in the city of Beaver Dam, but rather
the second. It was duly organized by twenty-five staunch confessional Lutherans who, together with the
sainted Reverend Paul Lucas, felt conscience-bound to withdraw from the congregation in which they
thus far had held membership.

Their names follow in the order in which they appear in the first minutes of the congregation: Daniel
Birkholz, John Zieske, Ferdinand Schwandt, Carl Bartz, August Kaatz, Henry Kraeger, Julius Kuhnke,
Franz Boese, Frederick Nimmer, John Hoffmann, Frederick Schulze, Carl Neumann, Christian Elsesser,
Christian Hinz, Godfrey Beier, Peter Birkenstock, William Hinz, Michael Mankowski, William Schultz,
Robert Schroeder, August Fluegel, August Selchert, Herman Prellwitz, John Boettger, and W. Schroeder.

What prompted these men to organize a new congregation? We shall let them speak by quoting their
own words: “Since the congregation in which we have thus far held membership, in a sinful manner, re-
jected our dear Lutheran Confession, and in a meeting held on the first Sunday in Advent, November 28,
1875, demanded of the pastor henceforth not to testify against the false religion of the Lodge, but to admit
anyone to the Lord's Supper without examination, regardiess of his impenitence; and since the congrega-
tion in that same meeting discontinued membership in their orthodox synod. . .we are conscience-bound
to sever connections with such a gathering and meet today to organize a new congregation in which, may
God give grace, all preaching and practice shal! at al! times be conducted in accordance with the Word
of ‘God and the confessions of the Lutheran Church. '"

We meet today, December 5, 1875, the second Sunday in Advent, for this our first congregational
meeting in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost. Amen” (Translated from the
German original)

This first meeting, called for the purpose of organizing, was held in the so-called Lawrence block,
corner of Front and Center Streets. The name chosen was St. Stephen’s Evangelical Lutheran Church. It
was decided to join the Wisconsin Synod and the Reverend P. Lucas was called as the first pastor.

Within a week property was purchased at the corner of Rowell and South Center streets for the sum:
of $1000.00. On the small piece of land was a house and a barn. The barn was lmmedlately remodeled
into a church and dedicated to the service of the Lord.

The congregation has shown an active interest in and support of
the Synod since its very beginning. As early as 1877 St. Stephen’s
whole- heartedly agreed to support Synod in the building of a Seminary.
In the same year they sent the Thanksgiving Offermg for our oollege in
Watertown.

In 1883 the property upon WhICh the present church stands at the
corner of West Maple Avenue and West.Street, was purchased for
$1025.00. The little church on Rowell S‘treet was moved across the
Madison Street bridge to this new location. The old property was then
sold,

By the grace of God the congregation grew steadily and soon the
fittle church was too small. In 1887 they decided to build a new church.
A local contractor was engaged and the church was completed the
same year. The cornerstone of this church, bearing the year 1887, has
found an appropriate place at the rear of our present church building.
The old church then served as the school building.:

A parsonage was built in 1903 and in 1905 the church bells were
purchased. In 1908 the church was substantlally enlarged and-com-
pletely renovated by the ever increasing congregation.

English worship services were introduced in 1915; and from then  Former Church - Bullt in 1887
until 1958 both German and English. worshlp services were conducted
each Sunday. ‘

Due to the rapid growth of the congregatlon it was dectded to build a new church in 1919. This new
church (our present building) was dedicated on March 14, 1920 at a total cost of $76,000.00. The total
amount had been subscribed for by the members at-the time of dedication.

On December 6, 1925 the congregation celebrated its Golden Jubilee. For the occasion the church
was decorated, the school house renovated and a hot water heating plant installed in the parsonage.

School enroliment had outgrown the white frame school and in 1929 a new modern brick school was
built at a cost of $68,000. It was intended to be a school with four classrooms, a confirmation classroom,
and an assembly room. However, a continually rising enroliment made it necessary to convert the building
into a six classroom school.




~ Pastors Who Have Served the Congregation

Pastor Lucas+ Pastor Probst + Pastor Mushlhauser + Pastor Goldammer +
1875-1878 1878-1881 1881-1885 1885-1896
7 N7

Pastor John Meyer + Pastor G. Stern + Pastor A. Arendt +
1896-1902 1909-1915

Pastor L.C. Kirst + Pastor H. Johne Pastor E. Huebner Pastor D. Raddatz
1915-1965 1857-1961 1961- 1965-1870

Missing: Pastor L. Pingel
1942-1944

Pastor W. Balza Pastor M. Sordahil
1970-1974 ' 1975-
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